
WHITE OAK CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

WHITE OAK CITY HALL 
NOVEMBER 13, 2012 

6:00P.M. 

MEMBERS PRESENT :Mayor Rick May, Mayor Pro-Tem Barbara Ray, Kyle Kutch, Charlie 
Owens, Kelly Mitchell 

MEMBERS ABSENT : Lance Noll 

STAFF PRESENT :Charlie Smith, Sherry Roberts, Mike Self, Billy Morgan, Terry Roach , 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chad Walls, Jim Nail, Linda Lee, Maureen Carrigan, Lona Maxted, 
Deborah Waddell 

Mayor May called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Mayor May led the invocation and the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A Consider and/or approve payment of bills. 
B. Consider and/or approve City Council minutes from October 9& 22, 2012. 
C. Consider and/or approve WOEDCO minutes from August 21 , 2012. 
D. Consider and/or approve Allied Waste's 1% CPI rate adjustment & Gulf Coast Low Sulphur 

Fuel Index. 
E. Consider and/or approve Ordinance 2012-12; FY W&S Fund Budget Amendment 

City Coordinator Charlie Smith explained the cost adjustment request by Allied Waste. The CPI 
was 2.2% but Allied Waste is only requesting 1% rate increase. 

Motion to approve made by Mayor Pro-Tem Ray, seconded by Councilmember Owens. Carried 
unanimously. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

None. 

CONSIDER AND/OR APPOINT Deborah K. Waddell as Municipal Court Judge. 

Motion to appoint made by Councilmember Mitchell , seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Ray. Carried 
unanimously. 

ADMINISTER Oath of Office and Statement of Appointed Officer to Deborah K. Waddell. 

Mayor May stated this was a ceremonial Oath of Office per his request and she can receive the 
official oath later. Mayor May then gave the Oath of Office to Municipal Court Judge Debbie 
Waddell. 

City Council Regular Minutes 
November 13, 2012 

Page 1 



PUBLIC HEARING regarding the Specific Use Provision for Michael Wade, to locate AAA Tree 
Service at 722 W. Highway 80, White Oak, Texas. 

City Coordinator Smith explained that Debbie Sadler is more familiar with this subject, but she is at 
a class and this is just a public hearing for anyone to speak. Mr. Wade has applied for a special 
use permit for this business. The Planning & Zoning Board has approved his request. 

Mayor May opened the public hearing for comments at 6:05p.m. 

There was discussion regarding a correctible error on the special use permit application. 

Public hearing closed at 6:1Op.m. 

CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE Specific Use Provision Application for Michael Wade, to locate 
AAA Tree Service at 722 W. Highway 80, White Oak, Texas. 

Councilmember Owens questioned Mr. Wade if this was just to store his equipment. Mr. Wade 
answered that it is to store equipment and to store, split, and sell firewood from this location. 

Councilmember Owens made motion to approve, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell. Carried 
unanimously. 

CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE Schaumburg & Polk, Inc. (SPI) to apply for a Texas Recreational 
Trails Fund Grant through Texas Parks & Wildlife on the City's behalf. 

City Coordinator Smith explained this grant was applied for previously and was not approved, but 
was right at cut-off to get the grant. A letter was received from the State stating more money had 
become available then a second letter was received advising we were approved for the grant. We 
would need the school and church to give easement rights. 

Councilmember Owens asked what the City's portion would be for the grant. City Coordinator 
Smith stated $64,779.75 which is a 30% match, but the grant is ours. Councilmember Mitchell 
questioned if this would be paid for in this year or next year's budget. Allen Ross from SPI stated 
this grant is a reimbursement project and still needs to be designed and approved by the State. 
The majority of the match will be spent in construction next fiscal year. Public Works Director Mike 
Self asked the SPI representative if like other Texas Parks & Wildlife grants, was there a three-year 
timeframe to do the project. Allen from SPI responded with an affirmative answer. Mr. Smith stated 
he had spoken to the school to see what help they could provide to help offset some of this 
expense. 

Mayor May asked Superintendent Gilbert to inform the Council about what the school board 
discussed the previous evening . Mr. Gilbert stated the school board gave verbal approval for a trail 
to go through school property with a small path adjustment to get closer to the boundary line on the 
south side to leave more of the land open for future use. This will be a great educational benefit for 
the nature center to use also. There are plans to build an outdoor amphitheater. There was a 
verbal commitment by the school board to grant an easement for this grant project. The school will 
be able to contribute to some degree but did not discuss an amount. The school is very interested 
in seeing this project move forward . 

Mayor May questioned if this motion allowed the City to move forward with SPI. Mr. Smith stated 
this motion allows the grant project to move forward and starts the process of having the walking 

City Council Regular Minutes 
November 13, 2012 

Page2 



trail built. He stated that he still needs to get with the church regarding the easement. Mr. Smith 
asked Allen with SPI what the next steps are for the project. Allen with SPI clarified grant has been 
offered and the application has been made. The City now needs to respond to accept the grant 
then start the paperwork to get the grant signed so project can start. He stated it will be after the 
first of the year before work actually begins. If there is an issue regarding the fiscal year, the City 
has three years to complete the project. Mr. Smith stated that Penick Park was on hold for one 
year before the project began. 

Councilmember Mitchell questioned if the high school baseball field project was still active. Mayor 
May stated that staff was very close to obtaining project costs to present to the school board and 
city council. Councilmember Mitchell stated he liked the idea of a walking trail but with the high 
school baseball field idea and the road extension for the new subdivision; there is only so much 
money and the Council needs to decide which projects can be completed. Mayor May stated he 
would like to fund the grant project next budget year. Mayor May questioned if the match was a 
50/50 match. Allen with SPI stated no, it is an 80/20 match. Mayor May stated the school will help 
with our match which will lower this number. If we delay it a year, we can work it in. 

Motion to approve made by Mayor Pro-Tem Ray, seconded by Councilmember Kutch. Carried 
unanimously. 

CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE Acorn Trail Sewer Line Relocation. 

City Coordinator Smith stated he met with Councilmember Kutch and engineer Kyle Stephens from 
Hayes Engineering and by implementing some revisions, the project will be cut in half. Mayor Pro
Tem Ray asked why the line needed relocating . Mr. Smith explained the line is in the bottom of a 
creek and the last big rain floated the line up and had a leak. The line will continue to leak with 
each rain. 

Councilmember Owens made the motion to approve, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell. 
Carried unanimously. 

DISCUSS AND/OR APPROVE Center Street Subdivision Street Construction Cost. 

City Coordinator Smith explained this is Rob Thompson's subdivision off of West Center Street and 
was originally expected to cost approximately $38,000 but now it is expected to cost $57,681 . He 
could build a cul-de-sac and the City would not have an expense. Councilmember Mitchell stated 
he would like to see a through street. Councilmember Owens questioned how long the project will 
last and does the Council have to pay for it right now or can the Council commit to the project and 
do it when the funds are available. Councilmember Mitchell questioned how many rooftops will be 
built. Mr. Smith answered thirty. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray questioned the length of the street the City 
would be responsible to complete. Mr. Smith answered 200 feet for street, curb, & gutter. Mayor 
May stated every dime will be needed to develop the new property recently purchased and money 
needs to be prioritized. There was further discussion on the pros and cons of funding this project 
for a through street versus a cul-de-sac and water and wastewater lines. After many unanswered 
questions were asked, Mr. Smith stated he would speak with Mr. Thompson and put the item back 
on the agenda for December. 

City Council Regular Minutes 
November 13, 2012 

Page3 



Councilmember Mitchell made the motion to table the item, seconded by Councilmember Owens. 
Carried unanimously. 

DISCUSS AND/OR APPROVE Tree harvesting on newly purchased City property on Old Highway 
80. 

Mayor May explained to the Council that tree harvesting must be done to develop the new 
property. In order to develop the new property, buyers will need to cruise the acreage in order to 
see what the timber is worth. He stated there is a company in Tyler that is interested in adding 
another facility in this area after the first of the year. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray questioned what kind of 
company. Mayor May explained it is a specialized athletic training facility. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray 
questioned the current zoning of this new property. Mayor May answered he thought it is currently 
zoned for commercial. City Coordinator Smith stated it is split between multi and single-family 
zones. Mayor May stated a street would need to be built and there is a lot to consider. 
Councilmember Mitchell questioned if the Mayor just wanted a motion to allow buyers to cruise the 
property and offer a price for timber. Mayor May answered yes. 

Councilmember Mitchell made motion to have someone cruise the timber, seconded by 
Councilmember Owens. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray stated she would like them to leave it as natural as 
possible and not to clear-cut it. A decision needs to be made on where the streets will go and feels 
like the Council needs a plan. Are there any ideas yet? Mayor May stated this is the first step and 
to see how much the timber is worth. Councilmember Owens stated that lot size is not an issue. 
This company wants five acres. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray questioned what type of building does the 
company need for five acres. Mayor May stated it would be metal building with a brick facade. 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ray stated that it must look nice and she did not want it to be industrial. Mayor 
May stated how he would like this to shine for White Oak. Carried unanimously. 

CITY COORDINATOR ITEMS 

• Adams Rd. Sewer Installation 
• Discussion of Burn Permits 

City Coordinator Smith explained that he has been approached by every neighbor on Adams Road 
in regards to tying into the City's sewer system. They asked him if the City would be open to the 
idea even if they had to pay for the project themselves. He stated that after speaking to Hayes 
Engineering, he is not sure they would still offer this because the cost of the project was 
approximately $111 ,000. Councilmember Mitchell suggested the homeowners only pay for what is 
in front of their home. Mr. Smith stated this project would only pick up five customers and it would 
require boring under George Richey Road. Plus, since it is outside the City limits, it would have to 
go in front of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). 

Mr. Smith asked Councilmember Mitchell to speak about this subject and he in turn asked 
Councilmember Owens to speak. Councilmember Owens stated there had been previous 
discussion regarding issuing burn permits on Saturdays. He explained how it is inconvenient if you 
cannot get a permit on Friday because of the wind then on Saturday the weather is appropriate for 
burning, yet citizens are not allowed to burn because permits are not issued on the weekend. Fire 
Chief Jimmy Nail stated the fire code allows the fire chief or fire marshal to designate personnel to 
issue burn permits. However, these employees should have some kind of training in the burning 
law. People will build their fires too close to other structures or under power lines. When the permit 
is issued, one is not actually looking at whether you can burn or not but where you are wanting to 
burn. Mr. Smith asked Asst. Police Chief Terry Roach for his thoughts on the idea. Asst. Police 

City Council Regular Minutes 
November 13, 2012 

Page4 



Chief Roach stated there would need to be written guidelines to go by before a permit is issued. 
Fire Chief Nail responded that guidelines are printed on the permit and there are TCEQ rules. Mr. 
Smith explained that if the ordinance was repealed then state guidelines will apply and there would 
be no burning allowed. Councilmember Mitchell asked Asst. Police Chief Roach if the police 
officers could issue permits on the weekend. Asst. Police Chief Roach explained there are two 
different shifts. But, Fire Chief Nail or Fire Marshal Walls would need to train the officers that work 
weekends. Mr. Smith stated the main issue to consider is people that burn too close to their house 
or do something they should not do and the fire department is called which costs money. 

Mayor May asked Fire Chief Nail if permits are only issued for one day at a time or if they are 
issued on Friday, is it good for the entire weekend. Fire Chief Nail answered that currently, 
weekend permits are issued on Friday. Chief Nail explained they keep up with wind predictions and 
if high winds are predicted then they do not issue permits. If the weather service is wrong , then 
people get upset. Mr. Smith stated that this could be an alternative. Chief Nail stated that the good 
thing is that issuing on a day-to-day basis is easier than guessing for the weekend. Public Works 
Director Mike Self asked if when someone calls in and complains about their neighbor, who makes 
the call about putting the fire out? Chief Nail answered that state law demands if someone calls in 
and complains about a medical issue, the fire is required to be put out. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Owens made the motion to adjourn at 7:00 p.m., seconded by Councilmember 
Mitchell. Carried unanimously. 

ATTEST: 

~~~ 
City Secretary 

City Council Regular Minutes 
November 13, 2012 

PageS 


